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Insurance Gompany lG Group
Financial Statements as at
31 Decembe12012
Prepared under IFRS

Statement of management's responsibilities

Management of Insurance Company lC Group is responsible for accompanying financial statements
of Insurance Company lC Group.

This responsibility includes:

' preparation of financial statements in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards;
' selection of suitable accounting policies and their consistent application;
' making judgments and estimates which are reasonable and prudent;
' preparation of the financial statements on the going concern basis, unless circumstances make this

inappropriate.

Management is also responsible for:

. creation, implementation and maintaining effective internal controlsystem;
' keeping proper accounting records in compliance with local regulations;
' taking such steps as are reasonably open to them to safeguard the assets of the Company; and
' prevention and detection of fraud and other irregularities.

The financial statements for the year ended 31 December,2012 were approved by the management
and signed on its behalf:

Tengiz Mezurniqtyili q

General Director
Insurance Company lC Group

Levan Kakulia

Chief Financial Officer
Insurance Company lC

Date: February25,2014
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PKF Georgia LLC
Audit, Tax & Business Advisory Services

PK7
Accountants &
business advisers

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT
TO THE OWNERS OF INSURANCE COMPANY IC GROUP LLC

Report on the financial statements

1. We have audited the accompanying financial statements of Insurance Company lC Group LLC (the
"Company"), which comprise the statement of financial position as at December 31 ,2012 and the income
statement, statement of changes in equity and cash flow statement for the year then ended and a
summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory notes.

Management's responsibility for the financial statements

2. Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in
accordance with lnternational Financial Reporting Standards. This responsibility includes: designing,
implementing and maintaining the internal control relevant to preparation and fair presentation of financial
statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error; selecting and applying
appropriate accounting policies and making accounting estimates that are reasonable in the
circumstances.

Auditor's responsibility

3. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audit. We
conducted our audit in accordance with lnternational Standards on Auditing. Those standards require that
we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance
whether the financial statements are free from material misstatement.

4. An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in
the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgment, including the
assessment of the risk of material misstatements of the financial statements whether due to fraud or error.
ln making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the Company's
preparation anQ fair presentation of the financial statements i-n order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate'ih tne bircu'mstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of
the Company's internal control. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting
policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates made by management, as well as
evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements.

5. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
our audit.

Modifying the Report

6. We were not able to obtain sutficient appropriate audit evidence as to the fair presentation of Reinsurers'
share in provisions for claims reported by policyholders as at December 31,2012 as disclosed in Note 9 to
the financial statements. We did not receive responses from reinsurers to the direct confirmation requests
and due to the features of the Company's internal control related to reinsurance reporting we were unable
to obtain sutficient relevant audit evidence by other audit procedures.

Opinion

7. In our opinion, except for the effects of such adjustments, as might have been determined to be necessary
had we been able to satisfy ourselves on the matters discussed in paragraph 6, the accompanying
consolidated financial statements give a true and fair view of the financial position of the Group as at
December 31,2012 and of its financial performance and its cash flows for the period then ended in
accordance with I nternational Fi nancial Reporti ng Standards.

PKF Georgia LLC hr_- ri n f)

Date: Febru ary2s,2014 Pt(F G*Z'u QQe-

Tel +995 32224 30 30 | 24 30 31 Fax +995 32 293 57 94 E-Mail:pkf@pkfgeorgia.com www.pkfgeorgia.com

PKF Georgia 85, Paliashvili str., 0162, Tbilisi, Georgia

pKF Georgia is a member firm of the PKF Intgrnational Limited netv/ork of lagally independent fims and d€s not ac€ept any responsibility or liability for the aclions or

inaclions on ths part of any other individual memb€r fim or fims.



lnsurance Company lC GrouP
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
As at December 31,2012
Amounts expressed in thousands of GEL

ASSETS

Cash and cash equivalents
Amounts due from credit institutions
lnsurance and reinsurance receivables
Loans issued and receivables
Reinsurance assets
Current Income tax asset
Deferred income tax asset
Investment Property
Property and equipment
Intangible assets
Deferred acquisition costs
Other assets

As at As at
Note 31-Dec-12 31-Dec-11

5
6
7
8
9
1 0
1 0
1 1
1 2

1 3
1 4

679 1,704
1 1 , 9 9 7  1 1 , 7 6 0
21,938 14 ,695

1,462 288
23,939 30,399

815 768
1 , 8 1 5  1 , 1 4 3
1,261 1,261

14,259 13,989
114 134
360 235

5,652 4,890

50,916 45,040
147 459

8,910 8,565
- 152

15,978 14,702
3,567 3,577
3,041 2,262

9

1 5
1 0
1 6
1 7
1 8

LIABILITIES

Insurance contracts liabilities
Deferred commission income
Other insuranoe liabilities. '

Deferred income tax liability
Financial liabilities
Trade payables
Other liabilities

:l
. l
. l
. l
:r
_l
. l
:l
:l
:l
l
l
l
l
l
l
l
l
l
l

EQUITY

Share capital
Retained Earnings
Non-controlling interest

1 9 1,500
232

1,500
5,009

I

Date: February 25,2014

Page



Insurance Company lC Group
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
For the year ended December 31, 2012
Amounts expressed in thousands of GEL

Year Year
2012 2011

Gross earned premiums on insurance contracts 21 37,791 30,404
Reinsurer's share of gross earned premiums on insurance contracts 21 (7,273) (5,621)
Net insurance revenue 30,518 24,783

Interest income
Revenue from medical services rendered
Other operating income

22 1 .265 1 ,591
23 6 ,554 1  ,018
24 1 ,585 2 ,757

Other revenue 9,404 5,366

39,922 30,149Total revenue

l
:t
. l
:l
. l
. l
. l
l
l
l
l
l
l
l
l

Gross insurance benefits and claims paid
Reinsurers' share of gross insurance benefits and claims paid
Gross change in contracts liabilities

25 (27,292) (32,860)
25 6,245 16,649
25 3,219 (26,230\

Reinsurers' share of gross change in insurance contract liabilities 25 (5,715) 25,385
Net insurance claims

Cost of Medical Service Provided
Salaries and other employee benefits
General and other administrative expenses
lmpairment charge
Interest expense
Depreciation and amortization expenses
Acquisition income (costs), net of reinsurance
Foreign exchange and translation gain (loss)
Other operatinq expenses 24 (683) (2,385)
Other expenses (21,682) (14,890)
Totaf cfaims and expenses (45,2251 (31,946)
Loss before tax (5,303) (1,7971

Total comprehensive (loss)/income for the year (4,777) (1,360)

Total comprehensive (loss)/income attributable to:
(4,777) (1,360)

(23,543) (17,056)

26 (6,81 1) (e72)
27 (5,146) (3,e0e)
28 (3,220) (3,585)
2e (2,306) (1 ,81 1)
22  (1 ,894)  (1 ,16e)
12 (1 ,750)  (631)

93 187
35 (615)

J
l
l
l

I

Other comprehensive income

- Shareholders of the Company

Tengiz

Date: February 25,2014
Page



Insurance Company lC GrouP
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
Forthe year ended December 31,2012
Amounts expressed in thousands of GEL
lndirect Method

Operating activities
(Loss)/profit before tax

Adjustments for:
Changes in operating assets
Changes in operating liabilities
lnterest income
Interest expense

Non-cash items included in (loss)/profit before tax:
lmpairment losses
Depreciation of property and equipment
Amortization of intangible assets

Year
lVofes 2012

Year
2011

22
22

29
1 2

(5,303)

(2,240)
6,526
(1,265)
1,894

2,306
1,727

23
(1,603)

(1 ,573)

(28,174)
32,717
(1  ,5e1)
1 , 1 6 9

1 , 8 1 1
617

1 4
(866)Other

lncome tax
Net cash flows (used in)/from operating activities

Investing activities
Purchase of property and equipment
Proceeds from sales of property and equipment

1
1,765 2,785

(64) ( 1 1 , 5 1 6 )
30

or'.
(2,085) (11,553)

Net cash paid for investments
Net cash flows (used in)/from investing activities

Financing activities
Proceeds from borrowings
Repayment of borrowings
lnterest expense paid on bank loans

1-t
-]

1
-]

-l

I
!

13,655
(12,682)
(1,8e4)

22,603
(12,687)
(1 ,16e )

dividends
Net cash flows (used in)/from financing activities

Net (decrease)/increase in cash and cash equivalents

Etfect of exchange rates changes on cash and cash equivalents

1 4 1
(e3s) 8,330

(1,259) (438)

Date: February 25,2014
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lnsurance Company lC Group
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
For the year ended December 31,2012
Amounts expressed in thousands of GEL

Attibutable to the shareholderc of the Group

SDare capikl eamings Totat

Total comprehensive income (1,360) (1,360)

Bafance as at December 31,2011 1^500

(4,777) (4,777)Total comprehensive income

In
n
tr
t-t
:n
;

n
h
ir
fr
h
h
h
h
h

n

il

Date: February 25,2014

Page



lnsurance Company lC Group
Consolidated Financial Statements as at
31 December,2012

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Amounts expressed in thousands of GEL unless otherwise sfafed

1 GENERAL INFORMATION

Insurance Company lC Group LLC (the ,,Company') was incorporated on 10 November 2005 based on the
decision of Vake District Court of Tbilisi, under the laws of Georgia. On 5 May 2009 Insurance Company lC
Group LLC acquired 10oo/o of JSC Peoples' Insurance. The latter was merged with lnsurance Company lC
Group LLC on 15 September 2009.

The Company possesses two types of insurance licenses issued by the Insurance Bureau and Supervisory
Board of Georgia for life and non-life insurance products. The Company offers life and various nonlife
insurance services and insurance products relating to propefi, aviation, liability, personal insurance and
others. Besides insurance services, the Company also provides healthcare products and services through its
100% owned subsidiary Medical Park Georgia LLC.

The registered office of the Company is 24 Mosashvili St, Tbilisi, 0162 Georgia.

The Company's founder and 78o/o owner of share capital is LGV 2005 LLC, and 22o/o of the share capital
belongs to Tengiz Mezurnishvili, General Director of the Company, who is also the ultimate shareholder of
LGV 2OO5 LLC.

The number of employees at the end of 2012 was 212 (2011:224).

2 BASIS qFPPREPARATION

General

These consolidated financial statements of the Company have been prepared in accordance with lnternational
Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS), as issued by the International Accounting Standards Board (IASB). The
Company is required to maintain its records and prepare its consolidated financial statements for regulatory
purposes in Georgian lari in accordance with IFRS.

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared under the historical cost convention except as
disclosed in the accounting policies below.

These consolidated financial statements value are presented in Georgian lari (functional and presentation
currency) rounded to the nearest thousand (GEL 000), unless otherwise indicated.

The Company presents its consolidated statement of financial position broadly in order of liquidi$. An analysis
regarding recovery or settlement within twelve months after the reporting date (current) and more than 12
months after reporting date (non-current) is presented in the respective Notes.

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount reported in the consolidated statement
of financial position only when there is a legally enforceable right to offset the recognised amounts and there
is an intention to settle on a net basis, or to realise the assets and settled the liabili$ simultaneously.

Page



Insurance Company lC Group
Consolidated Financial Statements as at
31 December,2012

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
Amounts expressed in thousands of GEL unless otherwise sfafed

2 BASIS OF PREPARATION (Continued)

Subsidiaries

The consolidated financial statements comprise the financial statements of the Company and the following
subsidiaries:

Ownerchip / voting Date of
incorporationSubsidiary 2012 2011 Counw lndustry

=

=

=

l__

_ t
l_-1

t '
=

:r
i-t
t-t
t-r
t-l
t-t
t-t
t-t
t ' l
t-t
t-J
t-t
FI
r-t

AliansMedi + LLC

Medical Park Georgia LLC

GlobalCall LLC

Agaraki LLC

loOo/o lOOo/o Georgia 11-Oct-10

Georgia 16-Nov-10

Georgia 03-Dec-10

Real estate
Health care

provider

lnformation and
communication

100Yo

10oo/o

100%

100o/o

100o/o

100o/o Georgia 25-Oct-1 1 Real estate

Subsidiaries are fully consolidated from the date of acquisition, being the date on which the Company obtains
control, and continue to be consolidated untilthe date when such control ceases. The financial statements of
the subsidiaries are prepared for the same reporting year as the parent company, using consistent accounting
policies. ,--

All intra-Company balances, transactions, income and expenses and profits and losses resulting from intra-
Company transaction are eliminated in full.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

New and amended standards and interpretations

The accounting policies adopted are consistent with those of the previous financial year, except for the
following amendments to IFRS effective as of 1 January 2012:

IAS 1 Presentation of ltems of Other Comprehensive lncome - Amendments to IAS 1

IAS 12 Income Taxes (Amendment) - Deferred Taxes: Recovery of Underlying Assets

IFRS 1 First-Time Adoption of International Financial Reporting Standards (Amendment) - Severe
Hyperinflation and Removal of Fixed Dates for First-Time Adopters IFRS 7 Financial Instruments: Disclosures
(Amendments)

IFRS 7 Financial Instruments : Disclosures - Enhanced Derecognition Disclosure Requirements

The adoption of the standards or interpretations is described below:

Page



Insurance Company lC Group
Consolidated Financial Statements as at
31 December,2012

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FtNANC|AL STATEMENTS (Continued)
Amounts expressed in thousands of GEL unless otherwise stated

3 SUMMARY OF SIGNIF|CANT ACCOUNTTNG pOLtCtES (Continued)

IAS I Presentation of ltems of Other Comprehensive Income - Amendments to IAS 1

The amendments to IAS 1 change the grouping of items presented in other comprehensive income (OCl).
Items that could be reclassified (or'recycled') to profit or loss at a future point in time (for example, net gain on
hedge of net investment, exchange differences on translation of foreign operations, net movement on cash
flow hedges and net loss or gain on available-for-sale financial assets) would be presented separately from
items that will never be reclassified (for example, actuarial gains and losses on defined benefit plans and
revaluation of land and buildings). The amendment affects has no impact on the Company's financial position
or performance.

IAS 12 Income Taxes (Amendment) - Deferred Taxes: Recovery of Underlying Assets

The amendment clarified the determination of deferred tax on investment property measured at fair value and
introduces a rebuttable presumption that deferred tax on investment property measured using the fair value
model in IAS 40 should be determined on the basis that its carrying amount will be recovered through sale. lt
includes the requirement that deferred tax on non-depreciable assets that are measured using the revaluation
model in IAS 16 should always be measured on a sale basis. The amendment is effective foi annual periods
beginning on or after 1 January 2012 and there has been no effect on the Company's financial position,
performance or its disclosures.

Ifns t F-i?sirime Adoption of International Financiat Reporting Standards (Amendment) - Severe
Hyperinflation and Removal of Fixed Dates for First-Time Adopters

The IASB provided guidance on how an entity should resume presenting IFRS financial statements when its
functional currency ceases to be subject to hyperinflation. The amendment is effective for annual periods
beginning on or after 1 July 2011. The amendment had no impact to the company.

IFRS 7 Financial Instruments: Disclosures - Enhanced Derecognition Disclosure Requirements

The amendment requires additional disclosure about financial assets that have been transferred but not
derecognised to enable the user of the Company's financial statements to understand the relationship with
those assets that have not been derecognised and their associated liabilities. In addition, the amendment
requires disclosures about the entity's continuing involvement in derecognised assets to enable the users to
evaluate the nature of, and risks associated with, such involvement. The amendment is effective for annual
periods beginning on or after 1 July 2011. The Company does not have any assets with these characteristics
so there has been no effect on the presentation of its financial statements.

Standards issued but not yet effective

The standards and interpretations that are issued, but not yet effective, up to the date of issuance of the
Company's financial statements are disclosed below. The Company intends to adopt these standards, if
applicable, when they become effective.

Page



Insurance Company lC Group
Consolidated Financial Statements as at
31 December,2012

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
Amounts expressed in thousands of GEL unless otherwise sfated

3 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

IFRS 9 Financial Instruments: Classification and Measurement

IFRS 9, as issued, reflects the first phase of the IASB's work on the replacement of IAS 39 and applies to
classification and measurement of financial assets and financial liabilities as defined in IAS 39. The standard
was initially effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2013, but Amendments to IFRS
9Mandatory Effective Date of IFRS 9 and Transition Disclosures, issued in December 2011, moved the
mandatory effective date to 1 January 2015. In subsequent phases, the IASB will address hedge accounting
and impairment of financial assets. The adoption of the first phase of IFRS 9 will have an effect on the
classification and measurement of the Company's financial assets, but will not have an impact on
classification and measurements of financial liabilities. The Company will quantify the effect in conjunction
with the other phases, when the final standard including all phases is issued.

IFRS 10 Consolidated FinancialStatements, IAS 27 Separate FinancialStatements

IFRS 10 replaces the portion of IAS 27 Consolidated and Separate Financial Statements that addresses the
accounting for consolidated financial statements. lt also addresses the issues raised in SIC-12 Consolidation -
Special Purpose Entities.

IFRS 10 establishes a single control model that applies to all entities including special purpose entities. The
changeplntroduced by IFRS 10 will require management to exercise significant judgement to determine which
entities are controlfed and therefore are required to be consolidated by a parent, compared with the
requirements that were in IAS 27. Based on the preliminary analyses performed, IFRS 10 is not expected to
have any impact on the currently held investments of the Company.

This standard becomes effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2013.

IFRS 12 Disclosure of Interests in Other Entities

IFRS 12 includes all of the disclosures that were previously in IAS 27 related to consolidated financial
statements, as well as all of the disclosures that were previously included in IAS 31 and IAS 28. These
disclosures relate to an entity's interests in subsidiaries, joint arrangements, associates and structured
entities. A number of new disclosures are also required, but has no impact on the Company's financial
position or performance. This standard becomes effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January
2013.

IFRS 13 Fair Value Measurement

IFRS 13 establishes a single source of guidance under IFRS forallfairvalue measurements. IFRS 13 does
not change when an entity is required to use fair value, but rather provides guidance on how to measure fair
value under IFRS when fair value is required or permifted. The Company is currently assessing the impact that
this standard will have on the financial position and performance, but based on the preliminary analyses, no
material impact is expected. This standard becomes effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1
January 201 3.
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Insurance Company lC Group
Consolidated Financial Statements as at
31 December,2012

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
Amounts expressed in thousands of GEL unless otherwise stafed

3 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

lmprovements to IFRS

These improvements will not have an impact on the Company, but include:

IFRS I First-time Adoption of International Financial Reporting Standards

This improvement clarifies that an entity that stopped applying IFRS in the past and chooses, or is required, to
apply IFRS, has the option to re-apply IFRS 1. lf IFRS 1 is not re-applied, an entity must retrospectively
restate its financial statements as if it had never stopped applying IFRS.

IAS I Presentation of Financial Statements

This improvement clarifies the difference between voluntary additional comparative information and the
minimum required comparative information. Generally, the minimum required comparative information is the
previous period.

IAS 16 Property Plant and Equipment

This improvement clarifies that major spare parts and servicing equipment that meet the definition of property,
plant and equipm€nt arg'not inventory.

IAS 32 Financial Instruments, Presentation

This improvement clarifies that income taxes arising from distributions to equity holders are accounted for in
accordance with IAS 12 Income Taxes.

IAS 34Interim Financial Reporting

The amendment aligns the disclosure requirements for total segment assets with total segment liabilities in
interim financial statements. This clarification also ensures that interim disclosures are aligned with annual
disclosures.

These improvements are effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2013.

Subsidiaries

Subsidiaries, which are those entities in which the Company has an interest of more than one half of the
voting rights, or otherwise has power to exercise control over their operations, are consolidated. Subsidiaries
are consolidated from the date on which control is transferred to the Group and are no longer consolidated
from the date that control ceases. All intra-group transactions, balances and unrealized gains on transactions
between group companies are eliminated in full; unrealized losses are also eliminated unless the transaction
provides evidence of an impairment of the asset transferred. Where it is necessary, accounting policies for
subsidiaries have been changed to ensure consistency with the policies adopted by the Group.

Page 11
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Insurance Company lC Group
Consolidated Financial Statements as at
31 December,2012

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
Amounts expressed in thousands of GEL unless otherwise sfated

3 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Subsidiaries (Gontinued)

A change in the ownership interest of a subsidiary, without a change of control, is accounted for as an equity
transaction. Losses are attributed to the non-controlling interests even if that results in a deficit balance.

lf the Group loses control over a subsidiary, it derecognizes the assets and liabilities of the subsidiary, the
carrying amount of any non-controlling interests, the cumulative translation differences, recorded in equity;
recognizes the fair value of the consideration received, the fair value of any investment retained and any
surplus or deficit in profit or loss and reclassifies the parent's share of components previously recognized in
other comprehensive income to profit or loss.

Product classification

lnsurance contracts are defined as those containing significant insurance risk at the inception of the contract,
or those where at the inception of the contract there is a scenario with commercial substance where the level
of insurance risk may be significant. The significance of insurance risk is dependent on both the probability of
an insured event and the magnitude of its potential effect.

Cash an$pash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash at Company, current accounts and short-term deposits with an
original maturity of three months or less in the consolidated statement of financial position.

Insurance and reinsurance receivables

Insurance and reinsurance receivables are recognized based upon insurance policy terms and measured at
cost.

The carrying value of insurance and reinsurance receivables is reviewed for impairment whenever events or
circumstances indicate that the carrying amount may not be recoverable, with any impairment loss recorded in
the consolidated income statement.

Reinsurance receivables primarily include balances due from both insurance and reinsurance companies for
ceded insurance liabilities. Premiums on reinsurance assumed are recognized as revenue in the same
manner as they would be if the reinsurance were considered direct business, taking into account the product
classification of the reinsured business. Amounts due to reinsurers are estimated in a manner consistent with
the associated reinsured policies and in accordance with the reinsurance contract. Premiums ceded and
claims reimbursed are presented on a gross basis.

An impairment review is performed on all reinsurance assets when an indication of impairment occurs.
Reinsurance receivables are impaired only if there is objective evidence that the Company may not receive all
amounts due to it under the terms of the contract and that this can be measured reliably.

Page 12
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lnsurance ComPanY lC GrouP
Consolidated Financial Statements as at
31 December,2012

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

Amountsexpressed in thousands of GEL unless otherwise stated

3 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Financial assets

lnitiat recognition and measu rement

Financial assets in the scope of IAS 3g are classified as either financial assets at fair value through profit or

loss, loans and receivables, held-to-maturity investments, or available-for-sale financial assets' as

appropriate. When financial assets are recogniied initially, they are measured at fair value, plus, in the case

of investments not at fair value through pro-Rt or loss, directly attributable transaction costs. The Company

determines the classification of its financial assets upon initial recognition.

The classification depends on the purpose for which the investments were acquired or originated' ln general,

financial assets are classified as at fair value through profit or loss, as the company's strategy is to manage

financial investments acquired to cover its insurance and investment contract liabilities (including

shareholders, funds), on in" same bases, being fair value. The available-for-sale and held-to-maturity

categories are used *nere the relevant liabiiity (inJluding shareholders' funds) are passively managed and/or

carried at amortized cost.

All regutar way purchases and sales of financial assets are recognized on the trade date i'e' the date that the

Company commits to purchase the asset. Regular way purchasei or sales are purchases or sales of financial

assets that,rgquire, Oeiivery of assets within thl periodgenerallyestablished by regulation or convention in the

marketPlace.

The Company,s financial assets include cash and short-term deposits, loans and other receivable and

investments available for sale.

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets with fixed or determinable payments that are not

quoted in an active market. These investments are initially recognized at cost, being the fair value of !.ne
consideration paid for the acquisition of the investment. All transaction costs directly attributable to the

acquisition are also included in the cost of the investment. subsequent to initial recognition, these investments

are carried at amortized cost using the effective interest method. Gains and losses are recognized in the

income statement when the loans and receivables are derecognized or impaired, as well as through the

amortization Process.

Av a i t abt e -fo r- sa I e f i n a n ci a/ assefs

Available-for-sale financial assets are those non-derivative financial assets that are designated as available-

for-sate or are not classified in any of the three preceding categories. These investments are initially recorded

at fair value. After initial recognition available-foi sale finincial assets are re-measured at fair value with gains

or losses being recognized as a separate component of other comprehensive income until the investment is

derecognizeo or untiithe investment is determined to be impaired at which time the cumulative gain or loss

previously reported in equity is included in the consolidated income statement. However, interest calculated

using thaeffective interest method is recognized in the consolidated income statement'
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Insurance Company lC Group
Consolidated Financial Statements as at
31 December,2012

NorEs ro CONSOLTDATED FTNANCTAL STATEMENTS (continued)
Amounts expressed in thousands of GEL unless otherwise sfafed

3 SUMMARY oF srcNrFrcANT AccouNTrNG polrcrEs (continued)

Financial assets (Gontin ued)

Determination of fair value

The fair value of investments that are actively traded in organized financial markets is determined by referenceto quoted market bid prices at the close of business on tn'e reporting date. For investments where there is noactive market, fair value is determined using valuation techniques. such techniques include using recent arm,slength market transactions, reference to the current market value of another instrument, which is substantiallythe same, and discounted cash flow analysis.

lf the fair value cannot be measured reliably, these financial instruments are measured at cost, being the fairvalue of the consideration paid for the acquisition of the investment or the amount received on issuing thefinancial liability' All transaction costs directly attributable to the acquisition are also included in the cost of theinvestment.

Offsefting

Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net amount is reported in the consolidated statement offinancial position when there is a legally enforceable right to set off the recognized amounts and there is anintention to settle on a net basis, or to realize tne asslt and setfle the liability simultaneously. Income andexpense Wif not be offSet in the income statement unless required or permitted by any accounting standard orinterpretation, as specifically disclosed in the accounting policies of the company.

Derecognition of financial assets

A financial asset (or, when applicable, a part of financial asset or part of a company of similar financialassets) is derecognised when:

The right to receive cash flows from the assets have expired
Or

The company retains the right to receive cash flows from the asset or has assumed an obligation to pay thereceived cash flows in full without material delay to a third party under a 'path-through, arrangement;And either:
The Company has transferred substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset

Or
The company has neither transferred nor retained substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, but hastransferred the control of the asset.

When the Company transferred its right to receive cash flows from an asset or has entered into a pass-through arrangement, and has neither transferred nor retained substantially all the risks and rewards of theasset nor transferred the control of the asset, the asset is recognised to the extent of the company,scontinuing involvement in the asset.
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lnsurance Compahy lC Group
Consolidated Financial Statements as at
31 December.2012

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANC|AL STATEMENTS (Continued)
Amounts expressed in thousands of GEL unless otherwise sfafed

3 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTTNG POL|C|ES (Gontinued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Derecognition of financial assefs (Continued)

Continuing involvement that takes the form of a guarantee over the transferred asset is measured at the lower
of the original carrying amount of the asset and the maximum amount of consideration that the Company
could be required to repay.

In this case, the Company also recognises an associated liability. The transferred asset and the associated
liability are measured on a basis that reflects the right and obligations that the Company has retained.

I m pa i rme nt of fi n a n c i al assefs

The Company assesses at each reporting date whether a financial asset or group of financial assets is
impaired.

lf there is objective evidence that an impairment loss on financial assets carried at amortized cost has been
incurred, the amount of the loss is measured as the difference between the asset's carrying amount and the
present vEl$e -of estimated future cash flows (excluding future credit losses that have not been incurred)
discounted at the finaricial asset's original effective interest rate (i.e. the effective interest rate computed at
initial recognition). The carrying amount of the asset is reduced through use of an allowance account. The
amount of the impairment loss is recognized in the consolidated income statement.

Assefs canied at amoftized cost

The calculation of the present value of the estimated future cash flows of a collateralized financial asset
reflects the cash flows that may result from foreclosure less costs for obtaining and selling the collateral,
whether or not the foreclosure is probable.

The Company first assesses whether objective evidence of impairment exists individually for financial assets
that are individually significant, and individually or collectively for financial assets that are not individually
significant. lf it is determined that no objective evidence of impairment exists for an individually assessed
financial asset, whether significant or not, the asset is included in a group of financial assets with similar credit
risk characteristics and that group of financial assets is collectively assessed for impairment. Assets that are
individually assessed for impairment and for which an impairment loss is or continues to be recognized are not
included in a collective assessment of impairment.
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Insurance Company lC Group
Consolidated Financial Statements as at
31 December.2012

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
Amounts expressed in thousands of GEL unless otherwise sfafed

3 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POL|C|ES (Gontinued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Av ail able-for-sale fi n ancial assefs

lf an available-for-sale asset is impaired, an amount comprising the difference between its cost (net of any
principal payment and amortization) and its current fair value, less any impairment loss previously recognized
in the consolidated income statement, is transferred from equity to the consolidated income statement.
Reversals in respect of equity instruments classified as available-for-sale are not recognized in the
consolidated income statement. Reversals of impairment losses on debt instruments are reversed through the
consolidated income statement if the increase in fair value of the instrument can be objectively related to an
event occurring after the impairment loss was recognized in consolidated income statement.

Insurance contract liabilities

Life insu nnce contract liabilities

The provision for life insurance contracts is calculated on the basis of the terms of the contract and the
insurance period as well as the prudent estimation of incurred losses in the claims reported at the reporting
date' 

r-,. -

General insu rance contract liabilities

General insurance contract liabilities include the outstanding claims provision, the provision for unearned
premium and the provision for premium deficiency. General business contract liabilities are based on the
estimated ultimate cost of all claims incurred but not settled at the reporting date, whether reported or not,
together with related claims handling costs and reduction for the expected value of salvage and other
recoveries. The liability is calculated at the reporting date based on empirical data and current assumptions.
The liability is not discounted for the time value of money. No provision for equalisation or catastrophe
reserves is recognised. The liabilities are derecognised when the obligation to pay a claim expires, is
discharged or is cancelled.

The provision is recognised when contracts are entered into and premiums are charged, and is brought to
account as premium income over the term of the contract in accordance with the pattern of insurance service
provided under the contract. At each reporting date the carrying amount of unearned premium is calculated on
active policies based on the insurance period and time until the expiry date of each insurance policy. The
Company reviews its unexpired risk based on historical performance of separate business lines to determine
overall change in expected claims. The differences between the unearned premium reserves, loss provisions
and as well as the expected claims are recognised in the consolidated income statement by setting up a
provision for premium deficiency.
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Insurance Company lC GrouP
Consolidated Financial Statements as at
31 December,2012

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
Amounts expressed in thousands of GEL unless otherwise sfafed

3 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Gontinued)

Reinsurance assets

The Company cedes insurance risk in the normal course of business for all of its businesses except for health

insurance. Reinsurance assets represent balances due from reinsurance companies. Amounts recoverable

from reinsurers are estimated in a manner consistent with the outstanding claims provision or settled claims

associated with the reinsurer's policies and are in accordance with the related reinsurance contract.

The reinsurers' share of each unexpired risk provision is recognized on the same basis. Reinsurance assets

are derecognized when the contractual rights are extinguished or expire or when the contract is transferred to

another party.

Offsetting

Reinsurance assets and liabilities are offset and the net amount is reported in the consolidated statement of

financial position when there is a legally enforceable right to set off the recognized amounts and there is an

intention to setfle on a net basis, or to realize the reinsurance asset and settle the reinsurance liability

simultaneously. Respective income and expense will not be offset in the consolidated income statement

unless required or permitted by any accounting standard or interpretation, as specifically disclosed in the

aceounting policies of the Company.

Deferred acquisition costs

The commission costs incurred during the financial period arising from the writing or renewing of insurance

contracts are deferred to the extent that these costs are recoverable out of future premiums. All other

acquisition costs are recognised as an expense when incurred.

Subsequent to initial recognition, deferred acquisition costs (DAC) for general insurance and health products

are amortised over the period in which the related revenues are earned.

Property and equiPment

Property and equipment, including the owner occupied property, is stated at cost, excluding the cost of day-to-

day servicing, less accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment losses. Replacement or major

inspection costs are capitalised when incurred and if it is probable that future economic benefits associated

with the item will flow to the entity and the cost of the item can be measured reliably.

Depreciation is provided straight line basis over the useful lives of the following classes of assets:
. Buildings: 20 years
. Motor vehicles: 5 Years
. Medical equipment and machinery: 5 years
. Furniture and fixtures: 5 to 10 years
. Leasehold improvements: 7 Years
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lnsurance Company lC Group
Consolidated Financial Statements as at
31 December.2012

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Gontinued)
Amounts expressed in thousands of GEL unless otherwise sfafed

3 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Property and equipment (Continued)

The assets' residual values, and useful lives and method of depreciation are reviewed and adjusted, if
appropriate, at each financial year and adjusted prospectively, if appropriate.

lmpairment reviews are performed when there are indicators that the carrying value may not be recoverable.
lmpairment losses are recognised in the consolidated income statement as an expense.

An item of property and equipment is derecognised upon disposal or when no further economic benefits are
expected from its use of disposal. Any gain or loss arising on derecognition of the asset (calculated as the
difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset) is included in the
consolidated income statement in the year the asset is derecognised.

Assets under construction comprised costs directly related to construction of property and equipment including
an appropriate allocation of directly attributable variable and fixed overheads that are incurred in construction.
Depreciation of these assets, on the same basis as similar property assets, commences when the assets are
put into operation.

Leasehold improvements are amortised over the life of the related leased asset. The assets residual values,
useful lives and methods are reviewed, and adjusted as appropriate, at each financial year-end.

I nvestmeirt properties

lnvestment properties are measured initially at cost, including transaction cost. The carrying amount includes
the cost of replacing part of an existing investment property at the time that cost is incurred if the recognition
criteria are met; and excludes the cost of day-to-day servicing of investment property. Subsequent to initial
recognition, investment properties are stated at fair value, which reflects market conditions at the reporting
date. Gains or losses arising from changes in the fair values of investment properties are included in the
consolidated income statement in the year in which they arise.

Investment properties are derecognised either when they have been disposed of, or when the investment
property is permanently withdrawn from use and no future economic benefits is expected from its disposal.
Any gain or loss on the retirement or disposal of an investment property is recognised in the consolidated
income statement in the year of retirement or disposal.

Transfers are made to or from investment property only when there is a change in use evidenced by the end
of owner-occupation, commencement of an operating lease to another party or completion of construction or
development. For a transfer from investment property to owner-occupied properg, the deemed cost for
subsequent accounting is the fair value at the date of change in use. lf owner-occupied property becomes an
investment property, the Company accounts for such proper$ in accordance with the policy stated under
property and equipment up to date of the change in use.
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Insurance Company lC Group
Consolidated Financial Statements as at
31 December,2012

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
Amounts expressed in thousands of GEL unless otherwise sfafed

3 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Inventory supplies

lnventory supplies are valued at the lower of cost and net realizable value. Cost of inventory supplies is
determined on a weighted average basis and includes expenditure incurred in acquiring inventory supplies
and bringing them to their existing location and condition. The cost of finished goods and work in progress
includes an appropriate share of production overheads based on normal operating capacity, but excluding
borrowing costs.

Net realizable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business, less the estimated costs
of completion and estimated costs necessary to make the sale. No provisions for obsolete or slow moving
inventory supplies are made.

Financial liabilities

I nitial recognition and measurement

All financial liabilities are recognised initially at fair value and, in the case of loans and borrowings, minus
directly attributable transaction costs.

The Company's financial liabilities include insurance contract liabilities, bank loans, overdrafts and other
liabilities.

. v

lnterest bearing loans and borrowings

After initial recognition, interest bearing loans and borrowings are subsequently measured at amortised cost
using the effective interest rate method. Gains and losses are recognised in the consolidated income
statement when the liabilities are derecognised as well as through the effective interest rate method (ElR)
amortisation process.

Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or premium on acquisition and fee or costs
that are an integral part of ElR. The EIR amortisation is included in interest expense in the consolidated
income statement.

De recog n ition of fi n a nc i al I i ab il itie s

A financial liability is derecognized when the obligation under the liability is discharged or cancelled or expires.

Insurance payables

lnitial recognition and measurement

Insurance payables are recognised when due and are measured on initial recognition at the fair value of
consideration received less directly attributable transaction costs.

Derecognition of insurance payables

lnsurance payables are derecognised when obligation under the liability is settled, cancelled or expired.
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Insurance Company lC Group
Consolidated Financial Statements as at
31 December.2012

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
Amounts expressed in thousands of GEL unless otherwise sfated

3 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Deferred commission income

The commission income earned during the financial period arising from the reinsurance ceded are deferred
and then amortised over the period in which the related reinsurance costs are recognized.

Leases

Finance leases - The Company as lessee

The determination of whether an arrangement is a lease, or contains a lease, is based on the substance of the
arrangement at the inception date and requires an assessment of whether the fulfilment of the arrangement is
dependent on the use of specific asset or assets and the arrangement conveys a right to use the asset, even
if the right is not explicitly specified in an arrangement. For arrangement entered into prior to 1 January 2005,
the date of inception is deemed to be 1 January 2005, in accordance with the translation requirements of
tFRtc 4.

Company as /essee

Finance leases that transfer to the Company substantially all of the risks and benefits incidental to ownership
of leased item, are capitalised at the commencement of the lease at the fair value of the leased property or, if
lower, at tfre"pr'esent valUe of minimum lease payments. Leasei payments are apportioned between finance
charges and reduction of the lease liability so as to achieve a constant rate of interest on the remaining
balance of the liability. Finance charges are recognised in interest expense in the consolidated income
statement.

Leased assets are depreciated over the useful life of the asset. However, if there is no reasonable certainty
that the Company will obtain ownership by the end of the lease term, the asset is depreciated over the shorter
of the estimated useful life of the asset and the lease term.

Leases that do not transfer to the Company substantially all the risks and benefits incidental to ownership of
the leased items are operating leases. Operating lease payments are recognised as an expense in the
consolidated income statement on a straight line basis over the lease term. Contingent rentals are recognised
as an expense in the period when they are incurred.

Taxation

Cunent income tax

Current income tax assets and liabilities for the current and prior periods are measured at the amount
expected to be recovered from or paid to the taxation authorities. The tax rates and tax laws used to compute
the amount are those that are enacted or substantively enacted by the reporting date in the country where the
Company operates and generates taxable income.

The current income tax expense is calculated in accordance with the regulations of Georgia.
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Consolidated Financial Statements as at
31 December,2012

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
Amounts expressed in thousands of GEL unless otherwise stated

3 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Taxation (Continued)

Defened tax

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are calculated in respect of temporary differences using the liability method.
Deferred income taxes are provided for all temporary differences arising between the tax bases of assets and
liabilities and their carrying values for financial reporting purposes, except where the deferred income tax

arises from the initial recognition of an asset or liability in a transaction that is not a business combination and,

at the time of the transaction, affects neither the accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss.

A deferred tax asset is recorded only to the extent that it is probable that taxable profit will be available against
which the deductible temporary differences can be utilized. Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at
tax rates that are expected to apply to the period when the asset is realized or the liability is settled, based on
tax rates that have been enacted or substantively enacted at the reporting date.

Deferred income tax is provided on temporary differences arising on investments in subsidiaries, associates
and joint ventures, except where the timing of the reversal of the temporary difference can be controlled and it
is probable that the temporary difference will not reverse in the foreseeable future.

Deferred ingome tax relating to items recognized directly in equity is recognized in equity and not in the
consolidated income statement. Deferred income tax assets and deferred income tax liabilities are offset, if a
legally enforceable right exists to set off current tax assets against current income tax liabilities and the
deferred income taxes relate to the same taxable entity and the same taxation authority.

Georgia also has various operating taxes, which are assessed on the Company's activities. These taxes are
included as a component of other operating expenses.

Intangible assets

Intangible assets acquired separately are measured on initial recognition at cost. Following initial recognition,
intangible assets are carried at cost less any accumulated amortisation and any accumulated impairment
losses. Internally generated intangible assets, excluding capitalised development costs, are not capitalisec
and expenditure is reflected in the consolidated income statement in the year in which the expenditure is
incurred.

The useful lives of intangible assets are assessed to be either finite or indefinite.

Intangible assets with finite lives are amortised over the useful economic life and assessed for impairment
whenever there is an indication that the intangible assets may be impaired. The amortisation period and the
amortisation method for an intangible asset with a finite useful life are reviewed at least at each financial year

end. Changes in the expected useful life or the expected pattern of consumption of future economic benefits
embodied in the asset are accounted for by changing the amortisation period or method, as appropriate, and
are treated as changes in accounting estimates. The amortisation expense on intangible assets with finite
lives is recognised in the consolidated income statement in the expense category consistent with function of
intangible asset.
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Insurance Company- lC Group
Consolidated Financial Statements as at
31 December.2012

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
Amounts expressed in thousands of GEL unless otherwise sfafed

3 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTTNG POLICIES (Continued)

Intangible assets (Gontinued)

. Computer software: 5 years

Gains and losses arising from derecognition of an intangible asset are measured as the difference between
the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and are recognised in the consolidated
income statement when the asset is derecognised.

Provisions and contingent liabilities

Provisions are recognized when the Company has a present legal or constructive obligation as a result of past
events, and it is probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required to settle
the obligation and a reliable estimate of the amount of obligation can be made.

Where the Company expects a provision to be reimbursed, for example under an insurance contract, the
reimbursement is recognized as a separate asset but only when the reimbursement is more probable than not.

Gontingencies

Contingent lidbilities are'nbt recognized in the consolidated statement of financial position but are disclosed
unless the possibility of any outflow in settlement is remote. A contingent asset is not recognized in the
consolidated statement of financial position but disclosed when an inflow of economic benefits is probable.

Governmental grants

Governmental grants are assistance by government in the form of transfers of resources to an entity in return
for past or future compliance with certain conditions relating to the operating activities of the entity. They
exclude those forms of government assistance which cannot reasonably have a value placed upon them and
transactions with government which cannot be distinguished from the normal trading transactions of the entity.

Grants related to assets are government grants whose primary condition is that an entity qualifying for them
should purchase, construct or otherwise acquire long-term assets. Subsidiary conditions may also be attached
restricting the type or location of the assets or the periods during which they are to be acquired or held. Grants
related to income are government grants other than those related to assets.

Presentation of grants related fo assets

Government grants related to assets, including non-monetary grants at fair value, are presented in the
consolidated statement of financial position by setting up the grant as deferred income.

Deferred income is recognised in profit or loss on a systgmatic basis over the useful life of the asset.
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Insurance Company lC Group
Consolidated Financial Statements as at
31 December,2012

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANC|AL STATEMENTS (Continued)
Amounts expressed in thousands of GEL unless otherwise stated

3 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTTNG POL|CIES (Continued)

Share capital

Share capital

Share capital is recognized at cost. Share capital contributed in assets other than cash is stated at the fair
value of such assets at the date of contribution.

Dividends

Dividends are recognized as a liability and deducted from equity at the reporting date only if they are declared
before or on the reporting date. Dividends are disclosed when they are proposed before the reporting date or
proposed or declared after the reporting date but before the financial statements are authorized for issue.

Income and expense recognition

Premium income

Premiums from life insurance contracts are recognized as revenue when payable by the policyholders, except
for investment-linked premiums which are accounted for when tfie corresponding liabilities are recognized. For
single prerhi[ni Ousiness this is the date from which the policy is effective. For regular premium contracts,
receivables are recorded at the date when payments are due.

For non-life business premiums written are recognized on policy inception and earned on a pro rata basis over
the term of the related policy coverage.

Estimates of premiums written as at the reporting date but not yet received, are assessed based on estimates
from undenruriting or past experience and are included in premiums earned.

Premiums are shown before deduction of commission and before any sales-based taxes or duties. Where
policies lapse due to non-receipt of premiums, then all the related premium income accrued but not received
from the date they are deemed to have lapsed is offset against premiums.

General insurance and health premiums written reflect business incepted during the year, and exclude any
sales-based taxes or duties. Unearned premiums are those proportions of the premiums written in a year that
relate to periods of risk after the reporting date. Unearned premiums are computed principally on either a daily
or monthly pro rata basis. Premiums collected by intermediaries, but not yet received, are assessed based on
estimates from undenryriting or past experience, and are included in premiums written.

Premiums ceded

Premiums payable in respect of reinsurance ceded are recognized in the period in which the reinsurance
contract is entered into and include estimates where the amounts are not determined at the reporting date.
Premiums are expensed over the period of the reinsurance contract, calculated principally on a daily pro rata
basis.
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Insurance Company lC GrouP
Consolidated Financial Statements as at
31 December,2012

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
Amounts expressed in thousands of GEL unless otherwise sfafed

3 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Income and expense recognition (Continued)

Provision for uneamed Premiums

The proportion of written premiums attributable to subsequent periods is deferred as unearned premium. The

change in the provision for unearned premium is taken to the consolidated income statement in the order that

revenue is recognized over the period of risk or, for annuities, the amount of expected future benefit payments.

Fee and commission income

Insurance contract policyholders are charged for policy administration services, investment management

services and for sunenders. The fee is recognized as revenue in the period in which it is received unless

these relate to services to be provided in future periods.

Revenue from medical services rendered

Revenues from medical services are recognised to the extent that it is probable that the economic benefits will

flow to the Company and the revenue can be reliably measured on an accrual basis. When services are

provided in e,4change for dissimilar goods or services, the revenue is measured at the fair value of the goods

or services received, adjusted by the amount of any cash or cash equivalents transferred. When the fair value

of the goods or services received cannot be measured reliably, the revenue is measured at the fair value of

the goods or services given up, adjusted by the amount of any cash or cash equivalents transferred.

Cost of Medical SerYices Rendered

Cost of medical services rendered represents expenses directly related to the generation of revenue from

medical services rendered, including, but not limited to wages and salaries of medical personnel, cost of

medicines and other inventory. Cost of medical services is expensed in the period in which the medical

service is rendered.

Reatized gains and /osses recorded in the consolidated income statement

Realized gains and losses on the sale of property and equipment and of available for sale financial assets are

calculated as the difference between net sales proceeds and the original or amortized cost. Realized gains

and losses are recognized in the consolidated income statement when the sale transaction occurred.

Benefits and claims

Life insurance business claims reflect the cost of all claims incurred during the year, including claims handling

costs. Death claims and surrenders are recorded on the basis of notifications received. Maturities and annuity

payments are recorded when due. Benefits recorded are then accrued to the liability.
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Insurance Company lC Group
Consolidated Financial Statements as at
31 December.2012

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
Amounts expressed in thousands of GEL unless otherwise sfated

3 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Gontinued)

Benefits and claims (Continued)

General insurance claims incurred include all claim losses occurring during the year, whether reported or not,
including the related handling costs and reduction for the value of salvage and other recoveries and any
adjustments to claims outstanding from previous years.

Claims handling costs include internal and external costs incurred in connection with the negotiation and
settlement of claims. Internal costs include all direct expenses of the claims department and any part of the
general administrative costs directly attributable to the claims function.

Foreign currency translation

The consolidated financial statements are presented in Georgian lari, which is the Company's functional and
presentation currency. Transactions in foreign currencies are initially recorded in the functional currency,
converted at the rate of exchange ruling at the date of the transaction. Monetary assets and liabilities
denominated in foreign currencies are translated into Georgian lari at official exchange rates declared by the
National Bank of Georgia ('NBG) and effective as of the reporting date. Gains and losses resulting from the
translation of foreign currency transactions are recognized in the consolidated income statement as gains less
losses from foreign currencies - translation differences, except where it relates to items where gains or losses
are recogeized directly'in equity, the gain or loss is then recognized net of the exchange component in equity.
Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are translated using the
exchange rates as at the dates of the initial transactions. Non-monetary items measured at fair value in a
foreign currency are translated using the exchange rates at the date when the fair value was determined.

Differences between the contractual exchange rate of a transaction in a foreign currency and the NBG
exchange rate on the date of the transaction are included in gains less losses from dealing in foreign
currencies. The official NBG exchange rates at 31 December 2012 and 2011, were 1.6567 and 1.6703
Georgian larito 1 US dollar, respectively.

4 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES, ASSUMPTIONS AND JUDGMENTS

Use of estimates, assumptions and judgments

The preparation of the financial statements necessitates the use of estimates, assumptions and judgments.
These estimates and assumptions affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and contingent
liabilities at the reporting date as well as affecting the reported income and expenses for the year. Although
the estimates are based on management's best knowledge and judgment of current facts as at the reporting
date, the actual outcome may differ from these estimates.

Estimation uncertainty

The key assumptions concerning the future and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at the reporting
date, that have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and
liabilities within the next financial year are discussed below:
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Consolidated Financial Statements as at
3'1 December,2012

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
Amounts expressed in thousands of GEL unless otheruvise stated

4 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING ESTTMATES, ASSUMPTIONS AND JUDGMENTS (Gontinued)

Estimation uncertainty (Continued)

Claims liability arising from insurance contracts

The estimation of the ultimate liability arising from claims made under life and general insurance contracts is
the Company's most critical accounting estimate. There are several sources of uncertainty that need to be
considered in the estimation of the liability that the Company will ultimately pay for those claims.

Life insurance contracts

For life insurance contracts there is no claims liability at the reporting date since the only life insurance product
is an annual insurance contract, which may be renewed, that will pay out a fixed amount to a beneficiary when
the insured person dies within that year.

G e n e ral i n su ra n ce contracts

For general insurance contracts, estimates have to be made both for the expected ultimate cost of claims
reported at the reporting date and for the expected ultimate cost of claims incurred but not yet reported (IBNR)
at the reporting-date. lt can.take a significant period of time before.the ultimate claims cost can be established
with certainty. General indurance claims provisions are not discounted for the time value of money.

Allowance for impairment of lnsurance Receivables and Reinsurance Assefs

The Company regulady reviews its insurance receivables and reinsurance assets to assess impairment. The
allowance methodology has been consistently applied.

For accounting purposes, the Company uses an incurred loss model for the recognition of losses on impaired
financial assets. This means that losses can only be recognized when objective evidence of a specific loss
event has been observed. Triggering events include significant financial difficulty of the customer and/or
breach of contract such as default of payment.

The amount of allowance is reduced by an amount of receivables which formally meet the criteria mentioned
above, but in relation to which the Company has adequate reasons to believe that the amount of debt will be
recovered.

Run-off analyses support this approach. Management judgment is that trends will not change in future and
that this approach can be used to estimate the amount of recoverable debts as at the reporting period end.

lrrecoverable amounts and specific credit risks are written off by charging direcfly against gross premiums.
Allowances for impairment based on past experience are necessary in respect of receivables due from
policyholders and agents/brokers on direct insurance and in respect of counterparts on reinsurance.

a)

b)
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4 StcNtFtCANT AGCOUNTING ESTIMATES, ASSUMPTIONS AND JUDGMENTS (Contlnued)

Estimation uncertainty (Gontlnued)

Measurement of fairvalue of investment propefties

Fair value of investment properties is determined by independent professionally qualified appraisers. Fair
value is determined using the sales comparison method. The estimate is subject to change as new transaction
data and market evidence becomes available.

5 GASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

Cash and cash equivalents as of 31 December comprise:
2012 2011

Cash on hand
Cunent accounts

310
369

88
1,616

Total 679 1,704

Cash and cash equivalents of lnsurance Company lC Group LLC on standalone basis compdse GEL 665. The
regulator rqquile4e4t is to.maintain minimum level of cash and -cash equivalents at 10o/o of the insurance
contrait liabiffidsbubjectt6 reservation as defined by regulatory reserve requirement resolution, which as of
reporting date amounts to GEL 449.

Cunent accounts balance as of 31 December comprises:
2012 2011

JSC WB Bank
JSC KorStandard Bank
JSC Halyk Bank Georgia
JSC TBG Bank
Other banks

183
83
55

48

371
5
3

1,002
235

The carrying amounts disclosed above reasonably approximate fair value at the reporting date.
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6 AMOUNTS DUE FROM CREDIT INSTITUTIONS

Amounts due from credit institutions as of 31 December comprise:

JSC Hatyk Bank Georgia
JSC KorStandard Bank
JSC PrivatBank
JSC BTA Bank
JSC WB Bank

Due from policyholders
Due from reinsurers

2012 2011

4,1  05
3,591
2,298
2,003

4,1  39
3 , 6 1 9
2,320

1,682

Amounts due from credit institutions are represented by medium-t erm (12 months - 24 months) placementswith Georgian banks and earn annual interest of 7.5o/o to um e0ll _ 8.2so/o to 12%).
Amounts due from credit institutions of GEL 4,105 (2011: GEL 5,ggg) are used as collateral for the company,sfinancial liabilities (Note 16).

Amounts due from credit institutions also include GEL 4,044 (2011: GEL 3,179) of restricted deposits inaccordance with regulatory minimal capital requirements

INSURANCE AND REINSURANCE RECEIVABLES

Insurance and reinsurance receivabres as of 31 December comprise:
2012 2011

24,6-61 18,356
64

Less - allowance for im 24,661

Total 72 3,725
14,695

The carrying amounts disclosed above reasonably approximate their fair values at year end.

At 31 December 2012 and 2011 allowance for impairment is fuily attributable to amounts due frompolicyholders.

LOANS AND RECEIVABLES

Loans and receivables as of 31 December comprise:

2012
Loans and receivables
Less - allowance for impairment (Note 29)

1 ,670
(208)

332
(44)

L'

Total

Page
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8 LOANS AND RECEIVABLES (Gontinued)

The loans receivable (principal and interest at amortised cost) comprise:

Loans issued to related parties
Loans issued to individuals
Loans issued to legal entity

2012 2011 lssue date

1,340
1 1

111

2012
20091 2

276

t_
L-
L-

I
t-
L.

I
L.

Total 1,462 288

The loan issued to legal entity have an interest rate of 160/o per annum (2011: 160/o).

The loans issued to related parties have an interest rate from 12.5o/o to 15%.

The loans issued to individuals have an interest rate of 160/o per annum (2011: 160/o), maturing for 365 days.

Carrying amounts of loans and receivables approximate their fair value as of the reporting date.

9 INSURANCE-9ONTRACT LIABILITIES AND REINSURANCE ASSETS

Insurance contract liabilities and reinsurance assets as of 31 December comprise:

2012 2011
Insurance contract liabilities

Unearned premiums provision
Provisions for claims reported by policyholders
Provisions for claims incurred but not reported (IBNR)

24,267
24,597
2,020

32

15,172
28,450
1,285

1 3 3Loss adiustment expenses reserve (LAER
Total insurance contract liabilities 9 1 6

Reinsurance assets
Reinsurers' share in unearned premiums provision
Reinsurers' share in provisions for claims reported by policyholders
Reinsurers' share in provisions for claims incurred but not reported
Reinsurers' share in Loss adjustment expenses reserve

3,963
19,976

4,708
25,691

Total reinsurance assets 23,939 30,399

lnsurance contracts liabilities net of reinsurance
Unearned premiums provision
Provisions for claims reported by policyholders
Provisions for claims incurred but not reported (IBNR)
Loss adjustment expenses reserve (LAER)

20,304
4,621
2,020

32

10,464
2,759
1,285

1 3 3

26,977 14,641Total insurance contracts liabilities net of reinsurance
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9 INSURANCE CONTRACT LIABILITIES AND REINSURANCE ASSETS (Continued)

At 31 December 2012 provisions for claims reported by policyholders and reinsurers' share in provision
includes GEL 19,664 and GEL 19,664 (2011:25,054 and GEL 25,054) respectively related to the reported
loss on Aviation Hull and TPL (Third Party Liability) policy by Georgian Airways. The policy was 100%
reinsured under the reinsurance treaty signed with insurance broker Marsh Ltd.

Insurance contract liabilities as of 31 December comprise:

2012 2011
Reinsurers'

share of
,nsurance insurance
contfact contract

Notos liabilities liabilities

Reinsurers'
share of

lnsurance insurance
contract contract
liabilities liabilities

Life insurance
General insurance

(a)
(b)

230
50,686 zs,9gg

230
26,747

372
44,668 30,399

372
14,269

Total insurance
contract 50,916 23,939 26,977 45,040 30,399 14,641

-  \ , t "  ,

(a) The movement during the year in the life insurance contract liabilities is as follows:

2012 20'11
lnsunnce Reinsurers'
conuact share of

Notos liabilities liabilities Aret

lnsurance Reinsurers'
contract share of
liabilities liabilities ,Vet

At 1 January

Premiums written
during the year

Premiums earned
during the year

Claims incurred during

,the current accident
year

Claims paid during the
yeal

1 1

(36)

1 1

(36)

188

(ee)

(203)

188

(ee)

21

(24)(28)25

(203)

(28) (241

At 31 December 372

l
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9 INSURANCE CONTRACT LIABILITIES AND REINSURANCE ASSETS (Continued)

(b) General insurance contract liabilities may be analyzed below. Provision for claims setgement expenses isincluded in the gross insurance contract liabilities.

2012 2011
conuact shafe of

Arotes liabilities liabilities
contact shareof
liabiliti* liabilities

Provisions for claims
reported by
policyholders

Provisions for claims
incuned but not
reported

24,474

2.010

19,976 4,498

2,010

28,086

1,285

25,691 2,395

1,285

Outstanding claims
provision

Provision for uneamed
premiums

Provision for loss
adju$tment expenses

'  
\ -P

6,509

20,207

32

( 1 )

(2)

26,484

24,170

32

19,976

3,963

29,371

15,164

133

25,691

4,708

3,690

10,456

133

Total general
insurance contracts
liabilities

50,696 23,939 26,747 44,669 30,399 14,269

(1) The provision for ctaims reported by poticy hotders,
adjusting expenses may be analyzed as follows:

2012

claims incurred but not yet reported (IBNR) and loss

2011
lnsurance
contract
liabilities

Rerhsurcrs'
share of
Iiabilities

lnsurance
contact
liabilities

Rernsurerc'
share of
liabilitiesirel

At 1 January

Claims incuned during
the cunent accident
year
Claims paid during the
year

Change in LAER

29,371 25,691 3,680 3,299

25

24,478

(27,2e/.)

( 1 0 1  )

530

(6,245)

306

42,033

(16,648)

2,993

17,018

(16,188)

(133)

23,948 59,051

(21,019) (32,836)

(101) (133)
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9 INSURANCE CONTRACT LIABILITIES AND REINSURANCE ASSETS (Continued)

(2) The provision for unearned premiums may be analyzed as follows:

2012 2011t_
t-
t_
t.
I
t._
I
l':
t:

t
f

lnsurance Reinsurers'
contract share of

lnsurance Reinsurerc'
contract share of

,Votes liabilities liabilities lret liabilities liabilities lret

At I  January 15,164 4,708 10,456 12,956 3,416 9,540

Premiums written
during the year 21 46,698 6,529 40,169 32,576 6,913 25'663

Premiums earned
durins the year (37,692\ (7,273) (30,419) (30,368) (5,621) (24,7471

At 31 December 24,170 3,964 20,206 15,164 4,708 10,456

Insurance contract liabilities and reinsurance assets - terms, assumptions and sensitivities

(a) Lite insurance contracts

('l ) Terms and conditions

Life insurance contracts. offered by the Company only consist of annually renewable term conventional
insurance contracts where lump sum benefits are payable on death.

(2) Key assumptions

Premiums for life insurance contracts are based on premiums set by the reinsurance company. These
annually renewed insurance contracts only pay a lump sum benefit when the insured person dies within that
year. At the reporting date, the pro rata premium for the policy year that is not yet earned, is deferred in the
caption Insurance Contract Liabilities.

(b) General insurance contracts

(1 ) Terms and conditions

The major classes of general insurance written by the Company include cargo, motor, household, property,
freight forwarding liability, professional indemnity, financial risk, health and aviation. Risks under these policies
usually cover twelve month duration.

For general insurance contracts, claims provisions (comprising provisions for claims reported by policyholders
and claims incurred but not yet reported) are established to cover the ultimate cost of settling the liabilities in
respect of claims that have occurred and are estimated based on known facts at the reporting date.

The provisions are refined monthly as part of a regular ongoing process as claims experience develops,
certain claims are settled and further claims are reported. Outstanding claims provisions are not discounted for
the time value of money.
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9|NSURANCEcoNTRAcTL|AB|L|T|ESANDRE|NSURANGEASSETS(continued)

lnsurance contract liabilities and reinsurance assets - terms, assumptions and sensitivities (continued)

(b) General insurance contracts (Continued)

(2) AssumPtions

For the calculation of the IBNR reserve including the liability adequacy test refer to Note 3 - Summary of

signifi cant accounting policies, Insurance contract liabilities.

Georgia significantly depends on fluctuations in

contracts are denominated in US dollars (see

Reproduced below is an exhibit that shows the development of claims over a period of time on a gross and net

reinsurance basis.

The tables ,il* *" reserves for both claims reported and claims incurred but not yet reported and cumulative

payments.

tn the tables below, the claims estimates are translated into lari at the rate of exchange that applied at the end

of the accident Year.

Before the effect of reinsurance, the loss development table is:

2012 2011 2010

Insurancecontractl iabi| i t iesoninsurancebusinesswriftenin
currency exchange rates as the insurance values on these

analysii of currency risk in the Note 30 - Risk Management)'

(3) Loss develoPment triangle

Accident Year
One year later
Two years later

24,236 59,051
62,316

19,675
21,580
21,580

of cumulative

Accident Year
One year later
Two years later

(1e,036) (32,836)
(41,e68)

(18,20e)
(20,472)
(20,472)

20,348 I  ,108Gross Outstanding Claims Provision per the statement of 5,200

Page 33



lnsurance ComPanY lC GrouP
Consolidated Financial Statements as at
31 December,20'12

NoTESToCoNSoLIDATEDF|NANC|ALSTATEMENTS(Continued)
eiountsexpressed in thousands of GEL unless otherwise sfafed

g rNsuRAi, CE CONTRACT LIABIL|TIES AND RE wSURANCE ASSETS (Continued)

rnsurance contract riabirities and reinsurance assets - terms, assumptions and sensitivities (continued)

(b) General insurance contracts (Continued)

(3) Loss development triangle (Continued)

After the effect of reinsurance, the |oss deve|opment table is:

Accident Year
One Year later
Two Years later

Accident Year
One year later
Tuo yearqJgter

2012 2011 2010

(18,650)

17,017
20,059

(16,187)
(19,432)

18,728
20,626
20,626

(18,201)
(1e,630)
(1e,630)

Outstanding provision statement of

IO INCOME TAX

The corporate income tax benefit comprises:

Current tax
Deferredtaxcredit.originationandreversaloftemporarydifferences

2012 2011

298
(824)

(2e5)
(142',)

Georgia currenay has a number of raws rerated to various taxes imposed by state governmental authorities'

Applicable taxes include value added tax, corporate income tax (profits tax)' and a turnover based tax'

together with others. Laws rerating to these taxes have not been in ibrce for significant periods in contrast to

more develoPed market economies'
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l0 INCOME TAX (Gontinued)

Therefore, regulations are often unclear or non-existent and few precedents have been established. This
creates tax risks in Georgia substantially more significant than typically found in countries with more
developed tax systems.

Management believes that the Company is in substantial compliance with the tax laws affecting its operations.
However, the risk remains that relevant authorities could take differing positions with regard to interpretive
issues.

The Company's operations and financial position will continue to be affected by Georgian potitical
developments, including the application and interpretation of existing and future legislation and tax
regulations. Such possible occurrences and their effect on the Company could have a material impact on the
Company's operations or its financial position in Georgia.

2012 2011

Current income tax assets
Deferred income tax assets

8 1 5
1 , 8 1 5

768
1 J 4 3

Total tax assets

deterred ihclmb tax'tiabitity

2,630

I1 INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

At 1 January

Additions
Fair value gains and losses (Note 24)

2012 2011

1,261

As at 31 December 2012, investment properties of the Company include land with fair value of GEL 1,261.The
future use of the land is undeterminable as at 31 December and is currently held for capital appreciation.

The fair value of the Company's investment property as at 31 December 2012 have been anived at on the
basis of valuation carried out at 28 october 2011 by Georgian Audit LTD, independent valuator. Georgian
Audit LTD has appropriate qualifications and recent experience in the valuation of properties in the relevant
location. The calculation was arrived at by reference to market evidence of transaction prices for similar
properties.
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1l INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (Continued)

There was no significant change in the fair value of the proper$ as of 28 October 2011, the appraisal date,
and as of 31 December 2012.

12 PROPERW AND EQUIPMENT

The movements in property and equipment were as follows:

Land and
buildings

Gross book value

lUlotor Medical
vehicles equipment

Furniture and Leasehold Assets under
fixtures improvement construction Total

01-Jan-l2 8,303 433 2.669 1.507 1.053 1.120 15.085

Additions 365
lnternal transfers 1.432
Disposals (13)

- 't,141

(147)

1_46 178

(25)
(1,432)

(185)

312 2,142

31-Dec-l2 10,087 286 3,810 1.653 1.206 17.042
r \ - ' . -

Accumulated depreciation
0lJan-12 aS tZt gg +gS grz - 1p96

Depreciation charge
Disposals

487 47

(40)

710 3 1 9 164 1,727

(40)

31-Dec-l2 572 128 481798 804 2.783

Net book value
O.1lan-12, e,Ztg gtZ Z,SA1 I,OZZ ne 1J2O 13,999
31-Dec-12 9,515 158 3,012 849 725 - 14,259.00
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12 PROPERW AND EQUIPMENT (Continued)

Gross book value

Land and Motor t[edical Furniture and Leasehold Assets under
buildings vehicles equipment fixtures improvement construction Total

01Jan-11 79 198 - 655 751 250 1,933

Additions
lnternal transfers
Disposals

2,050
6,174

270

(35)

2,669 8_52 3-02 7,044
(6,174)

13,187

(3s)

31-Dec-l1 8.303 433 2.669 1,507 1.0s3 1,120 15,085

Depreciation charge
Disposals

14822485 72

(5)

617

(5)

Net book value
0lJan-11 79 1M - 394 582 250 1,49

Property additions include GEL 1 ,420 in respect of Mestia hospital which started its operations in February
2012.

Property with the carrying value of GEL 9,494 is pledged to secure the financial liabilities (Note 16).

13 DEFERRED ACQUISITION COSTS

Deferred acquisition costs as of 31 December 2012 comprise:
2012 2011

At I January

lncurred
Amortized

236

852
(727)

224

683
(672)

360
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14 OTHERASSETS

Other assets as of 31 December 2012 comprise:

Receivables from regress claims
Advances and PrePaYments
Prepaid operating taxes
Trade receivables
Inventory
Foreclosed assets
Other

2011

1,767
1,614
1,492

859
468

97
1.328

1,903
'1,466

1,349
578
296

52
1 5 1

7,625 5,795

As of 31 December 2012, advances and prepayments of the Company include GEL 1 '078 (2011: GEL 262)

advances Paid to clinics.

prepaid operating taxes of the Company include input VAT GEL 1,465 (2011: GEL 1,280) attributable to the

AliansMedi + LLC as at 31 December 2012'
- . - r ' i

lnventory is'related to thb stock of medical supplies held by hospitals incorporated during 2011 and2012'

15 OTHER INSURANCE LIABILITIES

'  t -

20'12 2011

4,579
3,986

2012 2011

1 6

Other insurance liabilities as of 31 December include:

Reinsurance payables
Claims payable

FINANCIAL LIABILITIES

Financial liabilities as of 31 December comprise:

Bank loans
Bank overdrafts
Other payables

15,093
459
426

10,333
4,353

1 6

The bank loans have an average interest rate of 13.90% per annum (2011: 13.84o/o), maturing through

January 2O1g - October 2014 (2011 : January 2012 - December 20'12)'

Less - allowance for i
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16 FINANCIAL LIABtLtTtES (Continued)

lncluded in bank loans are amounts obtained from JSC wB Bank of GEL 4,014 (2011: GEL 5,272), JSC TBC
Bank of GEL 3,926 (2011: GEL 4,259), JSC KorStandard Bank of GEL 3,450 (2d11: GEL 801), BTA Bank of
GEL2 '104 (2011:  n i l )andJSCPr iva tbankof  GEL2,058 (2011:  GEL2,O58) . tnebanf  toansaresecuredby
the company's property and equipment with carrying vatue of GEL 9,494 (2011: GEL 9,423) (Note 12).

17 TRADE PAYABLES

Trade payables as of 31 December comprise:
2012 2011

Payables for construction
Trade payable for medical services
Other
Total

2,514
699

1 8OTHER LIABILITIES

Other liabilities as of 31 December comprise:

Acgruals fg-lemplgyee compensation
Operating taxes payable
Advances received

2012 2011

19 EQUIW

The share capital of the Company was contributed by the shareholders in Georgian lari and shareholders are
entitfed to dividends and any capital distribution in Georgian lari. No dividends were declared during 2012 or
2011.

Regulatory capital requirements in Georgia are set by the regulator and are applied to the Company solely on
a standalone basis' The regulator requirement is to maintain a minimum Capitat of GEL 1,S00, of which g0%
should be kept as amounts due from credit institutions. Insurance Company lC Group LLC complies with the
regulatory capital requirements as of 31 December 2012.

COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES

Legal

In the ordinary course of business, the Company is subject to legal actions and complaints. Management
believes that the ultimate liability, if any, arising from such actions or complaints will not have a material
adverse effect on the financial condition or the results of future operations of the Company.
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m COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES (Continued)

Taxation

Georgian tax, currency and customs legislation is subject to varying interpretations, and changes, which can

occuifrequently. Management's interpretation of such legislation as applied to the transactions and activity of

the Company may be challenged by the relevant regional and federal authorities. Recent events within the

Georgia suggest that the tax authorities are taking a more assertive position in its interpretation of the
legislation and assessments and as a result, it is possible that transactions and activities that have not been

challenged in the past may be challenged. As such, significant additional taxes, penalties and interest may be

assessed. lt is not practical to determine the amount of unasserted claims that may manifest, if any, or the
likelihood of any unfavourable outcome. Fiscal periods remain open to review by the authorities in respect of

taxes for three calendar years preceding the year of review. Under certain circumstances reviews may cover

longer periods.

Management believes that its interpretation of the relevant legislation is appropriate and that it is probable that
the Company's tax, currency and customs positions will be sustained.

Financial commitments and contingencies

As of 31 December, the Company's financial commitments and contingencies comprised the following:

2012 2011
Operating lease qommitments:

Not later thhn 1 Vear -

Later than 1 year but not later than 5 years
738

2,567
692

2,766
294commitments

commitments and

21 NET INSURANCE REVENUE

Net insurance revenue comprises:

Premium written on life insurance contracts
Premium written on general insurance contracts, direct
Total written premium

Gross change in life provision
Gross change in unearned premium provision

Total gross earned premiums on insurance contracts

Reinsurers' share of life insurance contracts premium revenue
Reinsurers' share of general insurance contracts premium revenue, direct

Reinsurers' share of change in life provision
Reinsurers' share of change in general insurance contracts unearned
premium provision

Total reinsurerc' share of gross earned premiums on insurance
contracts

Notes 2012 2011

9
9

9
I

188
46,698

1 1
32,576

(9,006) (2,208)
37,791 30,404

46,886

(8e)

(6,52e)

(744)

(7,2731

32,587

25

(6,e13)

1,292

(5,621)
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22 INTEREST INCOME AND INTEREST EXPENSE

Interest expense and interest income from financial assets comprise:

Interest income
Amounts due from credit institutions
Loans and receivables
Cash and cash equivalents
Total interest income

Interest expense
Bank loans and overdrafts

2012 2011

1 ,144
103
1 8

1 ,144
433
1 4

1,265

(1,8e4)

| ,591

( 1 , 1 6 e )

565
240
64

149

23

I'

t
I

il

t
l i

t
t
t
r l

t
, i

t
i

t

REVENUE FROM MEDICAL SERVICES RENDERED

Revenue from medical services rendered comprise:

Revenue from government programs
Revenue from free flow (non-insured retail individuals)
Revenue from iqgurange co.mpanies
Other revenue from medical services

2012 2011

3,350
1,949

689
566

Total 6,554 1 ,018

24 OTHER OPERATIONG INCOME AND EXPENSE

Other operating income and expense comprise:

Other operating income
Medical equipment free of charge
Write-off of claims payable balances
Medical inventory free of charge
Write-off of reinsurance payables
Revaluation of investment property (Note 11)
Other
Total other operating income

Other operating expense
Penalties imposed
Write-off of prepaid CIT balance
Other
Other operating expenses

2012 2011

567
553
1_46

3 1 9

t , izc
980
403

1,585

uut

2,757

965
740
680

683 2,385

Other income less other
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25 NET INSURANCE CLAIMS INCURRED

Net insurance claims incurred comprise:

Life insurance claims paid
General insurance claims paid, direct

Total insurance claims paid

Reinsurers' share of general claims paid
Gross change in total insurance contracts liabilities
Reinsurers' share of change in total insurance contracts liabilities

2012 2011

(28)
(27,264)

(24)
(32,836)

9
I
9

(27,2921

6,245
3,219
(5,715)

(32,860)

16,649
(26,230)
25,385

26 COST OF MEDIGAL SERVICES PROVIDED

Cost of medical services provided comprise:

Direct salary.-eJpense
Expenses on hedical service providers
Other indirect expenses
Direct materials

2012

7

2011

(3,33e)
(1,472)
(1 ,15s )

(841)

(771)
(27)
(21)

(1 53)

(6,811) (9721

27 SALARIES AND OTHER EMPLOYEE BENEFITS

Salaries and other employee benefits comprise:

Salaries
Bonuses
lnsurance and other benefits

2012 2011

(4,936)
(166)
(44)

(3,72s)
(160)
(24)

Total (5,146) (3,909)
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
Amounts expressed in thousands of GEL unless otherwise stated

28 GENERAL AND OTHER ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSES

General and administrative expenses comprise:

Occupancy and rent
Operating taxes
Communications
Legal and consultancy
Transportation
Utilities
Security
Marketing and advertising
Bank fees and commissions
Business travel and related expenses
Printing
Representative expenses
Office supplies
Repair and maintenance of property and equipment
Charity
Other

2012 2011

(867)
(455)
(426)
(213)
(77)

( 1 1 3 )
(7e)
(64)
(57)
(82)
(48)
(36)
(74)
(4e)
(6)

(574)

(1,22e)
(48)

(23s)
(482)
(1 57)
(143)
(40)

(170)
(1 1e)
(106)
(38)
(77)
(37)
(e8)
(31)

(571\

Total- t:? 8.220t (3,585)

29 ALLOWANCES FOR IMPAIRMENT AND PROVISIONS

The movements in the allowance for insurance and reinsurance receivables, loans receivable and receivables
from regress were as follows:

lnsuranco and
reinsurance Loans and
rpcelvables receivables Other assots

(Note 7) (Note 8) (Note 14) Total

31-Dec-10 5,389 - 601 5,990
. Charge 1,403 44 364 1,811

Write-off (3,067) - (60) (3,127)

Charge 1,067 197 1,042 2,306.00
Write-off (2,069) (33) 26 (2,0761

Allowances for impairment of assets are deducted from the carrying amounts of the related assets.
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30 RISK MANAGEMENT

The activities of the Company are exposed to various risks. Risk management therefore is a critical
component of its insurance activities. Risk is inherent in the Company's activities but is managed through a
process of ongoing identification, measurement and daily monitoring, subject to risk limits and other controls.
Each individual within the Company is accountable for the risk exposures relating to his or her responsibilities.
The main financial risks inherent in the Company's operations are those related to credit, liquidity and market
movements in interest and foreign exchange rates and equity prices. A summary description of the Company's
risk management policies in relation to those risks follows.

Governance framework

The primary objective of the Company's risk and financial management framework is to protect the Company
from events that hinder the sustainable achievement of the Company's performance objectives, including
failing to exploit opportunities. The Company recognizes the critical importance of having efficient and
effective risk management systems in place.

The Company has established a risk management function with terms of reference for the executive
management board. Management board delegates to respective members of senior management
responsibilities for overseeing compliance with established risk management policies.

The management board approves the Company risk management policies and meets regularly to approve on
any commei6i"al, relulatory and own organizational requirements in such policies. The policies define the
Company's identification of risk and its interpretation, limit structure to ensure the appropriate quality and
diversification of assets, alignment of underwriting and reinsurance strategy to the corporate goals and specify
reporting requirements.

Capital management objectives, policies and approach

The Company has established the following capital management objectives, policies and approach to
managing the risks that affect its capital position.

The capital management objectives are:
- To maintain the required level of stability of the Company thereby providing a degree of security to

policyholders.
- To allocate capital efficiently and support the development of business by ensuring that returns on capital

employed meet the requirements of its capital providers and of its shareholders.
- To retain financial flexibility by maintaining strong liquidity and access to funds available from financial

institutions.
- To maintain financial strength, to support new business growth and to satisfy the requirements of the

policyholders, regulators and stakeholders.

The operations of the Company are also subject to local regulatory requirements within the jurisdiction where
it operates. Such regulations not only prescribe approval and monitoring of activities, but also impose certain
restrictive provisions e.g. Capital adequacy to minimize the risk of default and insolvency on the part of
insurance companies to meet unforeseen liabilities as these arise.

The Company's capital management policy for its insurance and non-insurance business is to hold sufficient
liquid assets to cover statutory requirements based on the regulatory directives.
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30 RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

Approach to capital management

The Company seeks to optimize the structure and sources of capital to ensure that it consistently maximizes

returns to shareholders and policyholders.

The Company's approach to managing capital involves managing assets, liabilities and risks in a co-ordinated
manner, assessing shortfalls between reported and required capital levels on a regular basis and taking

appropriate actions to influence the capital position of the Company.

The Company has had no significant changes in its policies and processes to its capital structure during the
past year from previous years.

lnsurance risk

The risk under an insurance contract is the risk that an insured event will occur including the uncertainty of the

amount and timing of any resulting claim. The principal risk the Company faces under such contracts is that

actual claims and benefit payments exceed the carrying amount of insurance liabilities. This is influenced by

the frequency of claims, severity of claims, actual benefits paid are greater than originally estimated and

subsequent development of long term claims.

The variabilffof risks islmproved by diversification of risk of loss to a large portfolio of insurance contracts as

a more diversified portfolio is less likely to be affected across the board by change in any subset of the
portfolio, as well as unexpected outcomes. The variability of risks is also improved by careful selection and

implementation of underwriting strategy and guidelines as well as the use of reinsurance arrangements. The

Company establishes underwriting guidelines and limits, which stipulate who may accept what risks and the

applicable limits. These limits are continuously monitored.

The Company primarily uses loss ratio and combined ratio to monitor its insurance risk. Loss ratio is defined
as net insurance claims divided by net insurance revenue. Combined ratio is sum of loss ratio and expense
ratio. Expense ratio is defined as operating expenses excluding interest expense divided by net insurance
revenue. The Company's loss ratios and combined ratios calculated on a net basis were as follows:

2012 2011

Loss ratio 77o/o 69%
Combined ratio 107o/o 101%

The business of the Company comprises both life and general insurance contracts.

(1) Life insurance contracts

The Company writes life insurance contracts, where the life of the policyholder is insured against death or
permanent disability, usually for a pre-determined amount.

concentration of insured life benefits across 4 bands (band limits are inThe table below sets out the
thousands of GEL).
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30 RISK MANAGEMENT (Gontinued)

Insurance risk (Gontinued)

(1) Life insurance contracts (Gontinued)

Claims fiabifities per life insured at31l12l2O12
GEL 0-100 thousand
100-200 thousand
200-1000 thousand

Reinsurets
Gross share of
claims claims

liabilities liabilities
Net claims
liabilities

133

Greater than 1.000 thousand

)

I
I
I
t
t
t Claims liabifities per life insured at3111212011

GEL 0-100 thousand
100-200 thousand
200-1000 thousand

:uo
364

Greater than 1,000 thousand - - -
T o t a l  '  - r ' i  . '  3 6 4  -  3 6 4

The Company's undenrriting strategy is designed to ensure that risks are well diversified in terms of type of
risk and level of insured benefits. This is largely achieved through diversification across industry sectors and
geography, the use of medical screening in order to ensure that pricing takes account of current health
conditions and family medical history, regular review of actual claims experience and product pricing, as well
as detailed claims handling procedures. Undenariting limits are in place to enforce appropriate risk selection
criteria. For example, the Company has the right not to renew individual policies, it can impose deductibles
and it has the right to reject the payment of fraudulent claims. Insurance contracts also entitle the Company to
pursue third parties for payment of some or all cost. The Company further enforces a policy of actively
managing and promptly pursuing claims, in order to reduce its exposure to unpredictable future developments
that can negatively impact the Company.

Gurrently, insured risks do not vary significantly in relation to the location of the risk insured by the Company
whilst undue concentration by amounts could have an impact on the severity of benefit payments on a
portfolio basis. For contracts where death or disabili$ is the insured risk, the significant factors that could
increase the overall frequency of claims are epidemics, widespread changes in lifestyle and natural disasters,
resulting in earlier or more claims than expected. A Company does not reinsure the life insurance portfolio due
to the avoidance of all high risk individual Company's insurance.

The geographical concentration of the Company's insurance liabilities at 31 December 2012 and 2011 is as
follows. The disclosure is based on the countries where the insurance business is written. Direct insurance
business written is taken in Georgia.
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30 RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

Insurance risk (Continued)

(l) Life insurance contracts (Continued)

Cfaims liabifities per life insured at31t12t2}12
Georgia

Gross
claims

liabilities

Reinsurerc
share of
claims

liabilities
Net claims
liabilities

133133

t2l

t

Claims fiabitities per tife insured at31t12J2O11
Georgia

The companyprincipally'idsues the following types of general insurance contracts: thircl party motor owndamage, property, fina1cj.al. ri.sks, health, guarantees, cirgo, freight fonrarding liability, generat third pafiliability' motor third party liability, professioial indemnity, m-"rin" huil, aviation hull, aviation TpL. Risks undernon-life insurance poricies usuaily cover twelve month duration.
For general insurance contracts the most significant risks arise from climate changes and natural disasters.For healthcare contracts the most significant iisks arise t r iir"rtvL changes and epidemic.
These risks vary significantly in relation to the location of the risk insured by the company, type of risk insuredand by industry' Undue concentration by amounts can have a further impact on the severity of benefitpayments on a portfolio basis.
The above risk exposure is mitigated by diversification across a large portfolio of insurance contracts. Thevariability of risks is improved by carefui selection ano imptementation or underwriting strategies, which aredesigned to ensure that risks are diversified in terms or ivp" oi-risk and level of insured benefits. This islargely achieved through diversification across industry re"t,ors. Further, strict claim review poticies to assessall new and ongoing claims, regular detailed review of claims handling procedures and frequent investigationof possible fraudulent claims are all policies and procedur", pri in ptace to reduce the risk exposure of thecompany' The company further enforces a policy or actlvety- ianaging and prompt pursuit of claims, in orderto reduce its exposure to unpredictable future developmentsinat can negatively impact the company.

The company has also limited its exposure by imposing maximum claim amounts on certain contracts as wellas the use of reinsurance arrangements in order tJ timit exposure to catastrophic events, for examplehurricanes, earthquakes and flood damages.
The table below sets out the concentration of general insurance contract liabilities by type of contract.

Total
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30 RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

Insurance risk (Gontinued)

(2) General insurance contracts (Continued)

20',2
Reinsurels'

Gross share of
claims claims

Iiabilitios liabilitles

19,674

Reinsurers'
Gross claims share of Not clalms

liabilities claims llabilities liabilitleE

2011

Net claims
!iabillties

Aviation
Healthcare
Motor
Liability
Life
Property
Cargo
Personal accident
Travel
Financial risks
Guarantees

19,678
5,428
1,066

100
133
112
80
32
1 6
2
2

85
79

99
39

4
5,428

981
2 1

133
1 3
41
32
1 6
2
2

25,086
3,634

362
5

364
2
I

38
6

349
1 3

25,055

303

-

4

-
329

31
3,634

59
5

364
2
5

38
6

20
1 3

177

For general insurance contracts, the most significant risks arise from changes in loss frequency and loss
severity in motor and financial risks insurance and increases in prices of medical services. These risks vary
significantly in relation to the location of the risk insured by the Company, and the type of risks insured.

The variability of risks is improved by diversification of risk of loss to a large portfolio of insurance contracts,
as a more diversified portfolio is less likely to be affected across the board by changes in any subset of the
portfolio

The variability of risks is also improved by careful selection and implementation of underwriting strategies. The
Company establishes underwriting guidelines and limits that stipulate who may accept risks, their nature and
applicable limits. These limits are continuously monitored. Strict claim review policies to assess all new and
ongoing claims, as well as the investigation of possible fraudulent claims are in place. The Company also
enforces a policy of actively managing and promptly processing claims, in order to reduce its exposure to
unpredictable future developments that can negatively impact the Company.

Business ceded is placed on different terms (quota share, excess of loss) with retention limits varying by
product line and territory. Amounts recoverable from reinsurers are estimated in a manner consistent with the
assumptions used for ascertaining the underlying policy benefits and are presented in the consolidated
statement of financial position as reinsurance assets.

The geographical concentration of the Company's insurance liabilities at 31 December 2012 and 2011 is as
follows. The disclosure is based on the countries where the insurance business is written. Direct insurance
business written is taken in Georgia only and the reinsurance companies are all based outside Georgia.
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30 RISK MANAGEMENT (Gontinued)

Insurance risk (Continued)

(2) General insurance contracts (Continued)

2012
Reineurerc'

Gross share of
clalms claims

liabilitios liabilities

Reinsure|s'
Net claims Gross claims share of Net clalms
llabllities llabllltles clalms liabllitlG liabilltles

2011

Georgia 26.649 19,976 6,673 29,868 25,691 4,177

Total 26,649 19,976 6,67E 29,868 25.691 4.177

Financialr isk

(1) Gredit risk

Credit risk is the risk that one party to a financial instrument will fail to discharge an obligation and cause the
other party to incur a financial loss.

t r _ t _ ,

The Compiny t"n"g". the level of credit risk it accepts through a comprehensive group credit risk policy
setting out the assessment and determination of what constitutes credit risk for the Company; setting up of
exposure limits by each counterparty or group of counterparties, geographical and industry segments; right of
offset where counterparties are both debtors and creditors; guidelines on obtaining collateral and guarantees;
reporting of credit risk exposures and breaches to the monitoring authority; monitoring compliance with credit
risk policy and review of credit risk policy for pertinence and changing environment.

The following is a brief description of how the Company manages its credit risk exposure:

Reinsurance

Even though the Company may have reinsurance arrangements, it is not relieved of its direct obligations to its
policyholders and thus a credit exposure exists with respect to reinsurance ceded, to the extent that any
reinsurer is unable to meet its obligations assumed under such reinsurance agreements. The Company is
neither dependent on a single reinsurer nor are the operations of the Company substantially dependent upon
any reinsurance contract. There is no single counterparty exposure that exceeds 49o/o ol total reinsurance
assets at the reporting date. The Company evaluates the financial condition of its reinsurers regularly.
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30 RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

Financial risk (Gontinued)

(1) Gredit risk (Continued)

Loans and receivables

The Company sets the maximum amounts and limits that may be advanced to / placed with individual
corporate counterparties which are set by reference to their long term ratings.

The credit risk in respect of customer balances, incurred on non-payment of premiums or contributions will
only persist during the grace period specified in the policy document on the expiry of which the policy is either
paid up or terminated.

Crcdit quality perclass of financialassefs

The credit quality of financial assets is managed by the Company through internal credit assessment
procedures. The table below shows the credit quality by class of asset for loan-related lines in the
consolidated statement of financial position, based on the Company's credit assessment system.

Noither past
due nor Pastdue

. impaired but not impalr€d Total

Notes 2012 2012 2012

Amounts due from credit institutions
lnsurance and reinsurance receivables:

lnsurance receivables
Reinsurance receivables

6  1 1 , 9 9 7
7

21,553 385

| 1,997

21,938

Notes

Neither paEt
due nor
impairod

2011

Past-due
but not impalr€d

2011
Tota!

2011

Amounts due from credit institutions
lnsurance and reinsurance receivables:

lnsurance receivables
Reinsurance receivables

6
7

11,760

14,283
64

11,760

348

lnsurance and reinsurance receivables that are neither past due nor impaired include insurance and
reinsurance receivables that are not past due more than 30 days as of the reporting date. Insurance and
reinsurance receivables that are past due but not impaired include insurance and reinsurance receivables
overdue for more than 30 days. The Company does not have a credit rating system to evaluate past due but
not impaired receivables.

14,631
64

26,107 348 26,455
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30 RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

Financial risk (Continued)

(2) Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that an entity will encounter difficulty in raising funds to meet cash commitments
associated with financial instruments. Liquidi$ risk may result from either the inability to sell financial assets
quickly at their fair values; or counterparty failing on repayment of a contractual obligation; or insurance
liability falling due for payment eadier than expected; or inabitity to generate cash inflows as anticipated.

The major liquidity risk confronting the Company is the daily calls on its available cash resources in respect of
claims arising from insurance contracts and the maturity of debt securities.

The Company manages liquidity through a Company liquidity risk policy which determines what constitutes
liquidity risk for the Company; specifies minimum proportion of funds to meet emergency calls; setting up of
contingency funding plans; specify the sources of funding and the events that would trigger the plan;
monitoring compliance with liquidity risk policy and review of liquidity risk policy for pertinence and changing
environment.

The table below analyses assets and liabilities of the Company into their relevant maturity groups based on
the remaining period at the reporting date to their contractual maturities or expected repayment dates.- \ _ , . ,

31-Dec-12
Within More than

one year one year Total

Assets:
Cash and cash equivalents
Amounts due from credit institutions
Insurance and reinsurance receivables
Reinsurance assets
Loans and receivables
Cunent income tax asset
Deferred income tax asset
Other assets

679
6,503

21,938
4,275
1,462

8 1 5

5.652

5,494

19,664

t ,a t  s

679
11,997
21,938
23,939
1,462

815
1,815
5_652

Total assets 41-324 26-973 6A-2'|7

Liabilities:
lnsurance contract liabilities
Other insurance liabilities
Financial liabilities
Deferred income tax liabilig
Other liabilities

31,251
8 , 9 1 0
5,916

6.608

19,665

10,062

50,916
8,910

15,978

6_608
Totalliabilities 52.685 29.727 82.412
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30 RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

Financial risk (Continued)

(2) Liquidity risk (Continued)

31-Dec-l1
Within

one vear
More than
one vear Total

Assets:

Gash and cash equivalents
Amounts due from credit institutions
Insurance and reinsurance receivables
Reinsurance assets
Loans and receivables
Cunent income tax asset
Deferred income tax asset
Other assets

1,704
11,760
14,695
5,345

288
768

2,317

zs,osq

1 j 4 3
2,573

1,704
11,760
14,695
30,399

288
768

'|.,143

4,890

Total assets 36.877 28.770 65.647

Liabilities: -\-r

Insurance contract liabilities
Other insurance liabilities
Financial liabilities
Defened income tax liability
Other liabilities

19,986
8,565
6,491

152
5,839

25,054

8,211

:

45,040
8,565

14,702
152

5,839

Total liabilities 41.033 33.265 74.298

The amounts and maturities in respect of insurance liabilities are based on management's best estimate
based on statistical techniques and past experience.

The Company's capability to discharge its liabilities relies on its ability to realize an equivalent amount of
assets within the same period of time. In the Georgian marketplace, many short-term credits are granted with
the expectation of renewing the loans at maturity. In order to strengthen liquidity position of the Company, the
Company has borrowed funds from different banks in amount of GEL 12,686 subsequent to reporting date and
GEL 13,443 were returned. In Management's opinion credit facilities will enable the Company to handle the
liquidity position efficiently.
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30 RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

Financial risk (Continued)

(2) Liquidity risk (Continued)

The table below summarises the maturity profile of the Company's financial liabilities at 31 December 2012
based on contractual undiscounted repayment obligations. Repayments which are subject to notice are
treated as if notice were to be given immediately.

Less than 3 to 1 t o 5 Over 5
Financial liabilities 3 months 12 months years years Total

Financial liabilities 3,783 2,133 2,253 7,809 15,978

Total undiscounted financial liabilities 3,783 2,133 2,253 7,809 15,978

As at31 December2011
Financial liabilities 3,320 3,190 1,681 6,511 14,702
Total undiscounted financialliabilities 3,320 3,190 1,681 6,511 14,702

' r - v ' '

Geog raphicai concentrition

The geographical concentration of the Company's assets and liabilifies at 31 December 2012 and 2011 is as
follows. The disclosure is based on the countries where the insurance business is written. The analysis would
not be materially different if based on the countries in which the counterparties are situated.

OECD Non-OECD
Georqia countries countries Total

Asat3l December2012
Assets:

Loans receivable
Reinsurance assets
Deferred income tax assets
Current income tax assets
Other assets
lnsurance and reinsurance receivables
Amounts due from credit institutions
Cash and cash equivalents

1,462
348

1 , 8 1 5
8 1 5

5,652
21,938
11,997

679

zt,gsg t,osg
1,462

23,939
1,815

815
5,652

21,938
11,997

679

Total assets
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30 RISK MANAGEMENT (Gontinued)

Geographical concentration (Continued)

OECD
Georgia countries

NonOEGD
countries Total

As at31 December2012
Liabilities:

Defened income tax liability
Insurance contracts liabilities
Other insurance liabilities
Financial liabilities
Other liabilities

50,916
6,679

15,978
6,608

1,204 1,027
so,qe
9,910

15,978
6,608

Total liabilities 80.181 1.204 1,027 82,412

7U 606

Georqia
OECD NonOECD

countries countries Total
Asat31 Decgryber2011 ,.
Assets:

Loans receivable
Reinsurance assets
Defened income tax assets
Current income tax assets
Other assets
Insurance and reinsurance receivables
Amounts due from credit institutions
Cash and cash equivalents

288
144

1,143
768

4,890
14,632
11,760
1,654

28,297 1,958
288

30,399
1,143

768
4,890

14,695
11,750
1,704

63

50

Totaf assets 35,279 28,347 2,021 6ES47

Liabilities:

Deferred income tax liability
I nsurance contracts liabilities
Other insurance liabilities
Financial liabilities
Other liabilities

,t52

45,040
4,195

14,702
5,839

3,037 1,343

152
45,040
8,565

14,702
5,839

Total liabilities 69.918 3,037 1,343 74,298

678
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30 RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

Market risk

Market risk is the risk that the value of financial instruments will fluctuate due to changes in market variables
such as interest rates and foreign exchanges.

The Company has exposure to market risks. Market risk is the risk of change in fair value of financial
instruments from fluctuation in foreign exchange rates (currency risk), market interest rates (interest rate risk)
and market prices (price risk), whether such change in price is caused by factors specific to the individual
instrument or its issuer or factors affecting all instruments traded in the market.

The Company structures levels of market risk it accepts through a Company market risk policy that determines
what constitutes market risk for the Company; basis used to fair value financial assets and liabilities; asset
allocation and portfolio limit structure; diversification benchmarks by type of instrument and geographical area;
sets out the net exposure limits by each counterparty or Company of counterparties, geographical and
industry segments; control over hedging activities; reporting of market risk exposures and breaches to the
monitoring authority; monitoring compliance with market risk policy and review of market risk policy for
pertinence and changing environment, periodic estimation of potential losses that could arise from adverse
changes in market conditions and establishing and maintaining appropriate stopJoss limits and margins.

tnteiest ratel-ffsi

All financial instruments bear fixed interest rate. Thus no significant interest risk exposure currenly exists.

Cunency isk

The Company is exposed to effects of fluctuation in the prevailing foreign currency exchange rates on its
financial position and cash flows. The Company's principaltransactions are carried out in Georgian lari and its
exposure to foreign exchange risk arise primarily with respect to US dollars and euro, as the insurance
operations denominated in US dollars form a significant part of the Company's operations.

The Company's financial assets are primarily denominated in the same currencies as its insurance liabilities,
which mitigate the foreign currency exchange rate risk for the overseas operations. Thus the main foreign
exchange risk arises from recognized assets and liabilities denominated in currencies other than those in
which insurance and investment liabilities are expected to be setfled.

The tables below indicate the currencies to which the Company had significant exposure at 31 December
2012 and 2011 on its non-trading monetary assets and liabilities and itJ forecast cash flows. The analysis
calculates the effect of a reasonably possible movement of the currency rate against the Georgian lari, with all
other variables held constant on the consolidated income statement. A negativL amount in the table reflects a
potential net reduction in consolidated income statement, while a positive amount reflects a net potential
increase:
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30 RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

Market risk (Continued)

Cunency isk (Continued)

2012
USD EUR Total

Financial assets:

Cash and cash equivalents
Amounts due from credit institutions
Loans and receivables
lnsurance and reinsurance receivables
Reinsurance assets

563
2,003

125
19,582

25

1 1 3
9,906
1,337
2,313

23,900

679
11,997
1,462

21,938
23,939

3
88

43
1 4

Financial liabilities:

lnsurance contracts liabilities
other insurandliaLitities
Financial liabilities
Other liabilities

46,183
6,290
2,463
6,608

4,654
2,609

13 ,515

79 50,916
8,910

15,978
6,608

Total fi nancial liabilities

Increase in currency rate in %
Effect on profit
lncrease in currency rate in %
Effect on profit

Financial assets:

Cash and cash equivalents
Amounts due from credit institutions
Loans and receivables
lnsurance and reinsurance receivables
Reinsurance assets

5.00% 10.00%
840 6

-5.00% -10.00%
(840) (6)

2011
GEL EUR Total

631

288
9,279

219

1,070
11,673

5,380
30,179

1,704
11,760

288
14,695
30,399

3
87

36
1

Total fin'anc,ial assets . , tO.+tZ C8.302 J27 58.8a9=
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30 RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

Market risk (Gontinued)

Cunency risk (Contin ued)

2011
USD EUR Total

Financial liabilities:

lnsurance contracts liabilities
Other insurance liabilities
Financial liabilities
Other liabilities

15,418
4,680
2,003
5,839

29,580
3,885

12,699

42 45,040
8,565

14,702
5,839

Total fi nancial liabilities 27.940 46.164 74.146

Net position (17,5231 2,138 (15,300)

Increase in currency rate in %
Effect on profit
Increase in curreicy rate.iil %
Effect on profit

5.00% 10.00%
107 9

-5.00% -10.00%
(107) (e)

Foreign currencies represent mainly US dollar and euro amounts, but also include cunencies from other
OECD countries. The Company's principal cash flows (revenues, operating expenses) are largely generated
in Georgian lari. As a result, future movements in the exchange rate between the Georgian lari and US dollar
will affect the carrying value of the Company's US dollar denominated monetary assets and liabilities. Such
changes may also affect the Company's ability to realize investments in non-monetary assets as measured in
USD in these financial statements.

Price risk

The Company's price risk exposure relates to financial assets and liabilities whose values will fluctuate as a
. result of changes in market prices. The Company did not have such financial assets or liabilities as of 31

December 2012 and 2011.

3I RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

f n accordance with IAS 24 Related Party Disclosures, parties are considered to be related if one party has the
ability to control the other party or exercise significant influence over the other party in making financial or
operational decisions. In considering each possible related party relationship, attention is directed to the
substance of the relationship, not merely the legal form.

Related parties may enter into transactions which unrelated parties might not, and transactions between
related parties may not be effected on the same terms, conditions and amounts as transactions between
unrelated parties. . '
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31 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (Continued)

The volumes of related party transactions, outstanding balances at the year end, and related expense and
income for the year are as follows:

2012 2011

Parent

Entities
under

common
control Parent

Entifies
under

common
control

Assets

Loans receivable
lnsurance and reinsurance receivables
Other assets

Liabilities

Loans payable
Dividends payable

'  
\ - i '  :

Income and expenses

Insurance premium
Interest income on financial liabilities
Interest expense on financial liabilities
Other expenses

1,340

368
2

1 6
89

1,040
1,708 1 8 1,129

249
1 3

249 1 3

7

(34)
(808)

29
50

(7)
(1,'t22)

(835) (6) (1,043)

Compensation of key management personnel (2012:2 persons; 2011: 3 persons) comprised the following:

2012 2011
Salaries and bonuses 472 371
Total kev manaqement comoensation

Remuneration of Consultation Commiftee (2012:9 members, 2011: 1 member) comprised the following:

2012 2011
Salaries and other benefits 639 457
Total Consultation

Members of the committee are responsible for provision of consultations regarding the strategic directions of
the Company.

371472

639
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32 CHANGE IN ACCOUNTING POLICY

During preparation of financial statements for the year ended December 31,2012 the management decided to
change accounting policy regarding deferral of acquisition costs and commission incomes. In prior periods the
Company recognized all acquisition costs as period expenses and all commission incomes as the period
income. In these financial statements part of acquisition costs are deferred (see note 13) as well as part of
commission incomes. The new accounting policy was applied retrospectively and the effect on previously
reported information is the following:

Balance sheet 2011 2011
As previously

As restated reported Change

Deferred acquisition costs
Deferred commission income

Retained earnings

lncome statement

5,009 5,233 12241

Acquisition income (costs), net of reinsurance 187 411 (2241

33 GOING COltlO€RN CONSTDERATIONS

These financial statements have been prepared on a going concern basis, which contemplates the realisation
of assets and the settlement of liabilities in the normal course of business of the Group.

Despite net operating losses in the past years (Loss in 2012: 4,777 GEL and Loss in 2011: 1,360 GEL)
management believes that the going concern risk for the company is controllable and management has made
efforts to improve the results.

The management position is supported by the actions taken in 2013. Namely, management has decreased
operational expenses by reducing the operating staff. Another source of operations optimization will be the
introduction of new Enterprise Resource Planning (ERP) software which comprises a comprehensive system
which will optimize operations of the following structural units: sales, claims regulation, undenariting, human

,. resources control, accounting, and financial reporting. Finally, starting from February 2013 a new unit has
been formed within Finance Department which will be responsible for collection of doubtful accounts.

The non-audited results in 2013 show positive effects of this optimization procedures. The result for the first
1 1 month of the year 201 3 is the net profit 3,1 61 GEL. Gross wriften premium amounted to 40,688 GEL and
net undenryriting result is 7,093 GEL. Total equity of the group as at November 30,2013 according to
unaudited statements is 4.892 GEL.

34 EVENTS AFTER REPORTING DATE

There were no significant subsequent events after the reporting date.

235
459

235
459
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